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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-SOO.852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

November 21,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc., VC#157934, Concord, NH. for the provision of
a Housing Opportunities for Persons with Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HOPWA)
program offering housing and utility assistance with supportive services to low income persons
and their families living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiericy
Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation
by $203,756 from $800,973 to $1,004,729 to add services required by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and extending the completion date from April 3, 2023 to
May 31, 2023, effective retroactive to June 2, 2022, upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds. ;

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 17,2019, item #12,
as amended with Governor approval on July 10, 2020, and presented to the Executive Council
on August 5, 2020, Informational Item #D, and as amended with Governor and Council approval
on August 5, 2020, item #16.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances betweeti state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. Due to a previous misallocation of the grantee
administration costs, a change in the State Fiscal Year 2020 budget was necessary to correct this
oversight.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs

42305210:42305211;
42305212; 42305213; &
42305214

$59,932 $0 $59,932

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs

42305210; 42305211;
42305212; 42305213; &
42305214

$321,621 ($4,907) $316,614

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs

42305210; 42306211;
42305212; 42305213; &
42305214

$239,726 $0 $239,726
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2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svcs

42305210; 42305211;
42305212; 42305213; &
42305214 ■

$179,794 $0 $179,794

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst & Relief
TBD $0 $208,663 $208,^3

Total $800,973 $203,756 $1,004,729

EXPLANATION

The U.S. Department of Housing arKJ Urban Development (HUD) awarded to the
Department funding effective, retroactive, to June 2, 2022 for the HOPWA program. This request
is Retroactive to align with the effective date of the additional HUD funding and to allow the
Contractor to receive payment for costs incurred in the provision of HOPWA services retroactive
to June 2. 2022. HUD did not open this renewal application until July of 2022. The Department
did not receive the notice of award until September 22, 2022.

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify the State's designated Program Sponsor Agency prior to the HOPWA grant award being
issued. Annually, HUD releases a Continuum of Care (CoC) Program competition. As part of this
competition, the Department, as the Collaborative Applicant, is required to issue a Request for
Proposals, through the Continuum, based on the HUD CoC Program Notice of Funding
Opportunity (NOFO). HUD subsequently awards funding based on strict federal cnteria specifying
eligible activities, populations to be served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for
the application competition and subsequent Departnienta|,agreerfients. The Department receives
notification of the awards and signed grant agreements from HUD several months later, at which
time, agreements such as the one contained in this request, can be executed.

There are only two (2) vendors in New Hampshire that meet HUb" criteria to be eligible to
provide these services, and Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. is the only vendor that
serves this region for which the services and funding have been made available. HUD criteria for
these service providers include organizational capacity standards, including experience serving
individuals with HIV/AIDS, experience administering HOPWA programming, and a history of
meeting applicable performance benchmarks for existing or previous HOTOA programs.

The purpose of this request Is to add HOPWA funding, per a directive frpm HUD, for the
continued provision of timely supportive services and housing arid utility assistance for individuals
and families who are low-income and living with HIV/AIDS. This request is also to extend the
contract end date by two (2) months to align with the dates specified by HUD.

Through the HOPWA program, the Department seeks to ensure ongoing stable housing
and utility assistance for this highly vulnerable population while maximizing the ability of
individuals and families to live more independently. Stable housing is closely linked to successful
HIV outcomes. With safe, decent, and affordable housing, individuals with HIV are better able to
access medical care and supportive senrices, receive HIV treatment, take HIV medication
consistently, and regularly see their health care provider, tn order to qualify for this program,
individuals must have been diagnosed with HIV/AIDS and meet certain income standards. The
Contractor detennines if the individual meets the income eligibility standards for the program. The
Contractor makes the housing and utility payments directly to landlords for individuals in the
HOPWA program.

Approximately 250 individuals will be served between April 1, 2020 and Ma/31, 2023.
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The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools;
•  Required annual compliance reviews; and

•  Statistical reports and timely, accurate data entry into the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS) relative to outcomes and
activities of housing and supportive services programs.

As referenced in Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1,
-  Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2. of the original agreement, the parties

have the option to extend the agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor^and
Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) months of
the two (2) years available. - v -

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, households affeded by
HIV/AIDS throughout the area served may lose their ability to maintain their current housing and
essential supportive services, such as counseling and frriancial management, which are
necessary to maintain housing.

Area served; Manchester, Bedford and Goffstown, New Hampshire. HOPWA-funded
services for the Balance of State are provided through a separate federal housing grant
administered through the New Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports by way of a separate
contract.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #14.241, FAIN #NH-rH220050

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. - -

Respectf u 1 ly s ubm itted,

Shibinette

issioner

Lo

Com

The Department of Health and Human Services'Miesion is lo join communilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program Manchester
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 17, 2019, (Item #12), as amended on August 5, 2020, (Item #D), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified -in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and • •• . . .

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, Genera! Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1i Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify "
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

May 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisioris, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,004,729

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

.  Robert W. Moore, Director . ^

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1,'Subsection 1.1.,
Paragraph 1.1.1. to read:

•  1.1.1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds ffbrn'the Housing Opportunities for
Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) grant, as awarded by the U.S. Department of Housing &
Urban Development (HUD), Office of Community Planning and Development, as follows:

1.1.1.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.1.1.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.1.1.3. CFDA#: 14.241

1.1.1.4. Federal Agency; U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.1.1.5. Federal Office: Office of Community Planning and Development

1.1.1.6. Program Title: Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA)

1.1.1.7. Funds allocation under this agreement for HOPWA:

1.1.1.7.1. Grant #NH-H15-0020, April 1,2019-May 31, 2019: $5,662

1.1.1.7.2. Grant #NH-H18-0019. April 1. 2019 - March 31. 2022: $713.516

1.1.1.7.3. Subtotal Program Funds: $719,178

1.1.1.7.4. April 1, 2019 - March 31, 2022, not to exceed: $719,178

1.1.1.7.5. .COVID-19 Related Costs:

'1.1.1.7.5.1. Grant#: NH-H2001W073, April 3, 2020-April 3, 2023: $76.888

1.1.1.7.6. Subtotal Program Funds, April 1. 2019-April 's, 2023: $796,066

1.1.1.7.7. Grant #NH-H220050, April 4, 2023 - May 31, 2023: $208.663

1.1.1.7.8. Grand Total Program Funds, April 1, 2019-May 31, 2023: $1,0Q4T7^

Merrimack Vallev Assistance Proaram. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^
11/23/2022

SS-2019-BHHS-05-HOPWA-01-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date _____
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5. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1 by deleting Subsection
1.2.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent ,tQ.Payment, Section 3., Subsection 3.4.,
Schedule of Payments, to read:

3.4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the
month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

3.4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

3.4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases,
and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.4.6. - Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to: dhhs.bhhsfmance@dhhs.nh.goy or mailed to:

3.4.6.1. Financial Manager -
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street . ̂

Concord, NH 03301

-= y—OS

I
Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor initials

SS-2019-BHHS-05-HOPWA-01-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not rriodified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to June 2, 2022, upon Governor and
Council approval. ..

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of.the date written below, . .

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

11/23/2022

Date

—OocuSigned by:

Name-^^'WHebert

Title: Division Director

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc.

11/23/2022

Date

-OocuSiflncd by:

I^cLalL — •.
R. Mui liiiier

Name:

Title: Pres. of Board

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2019-BHHS-05-HOPWA-01-A02 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/23/2022

^DocuSlgned by:

Jilt flAbW

Date Name:

Title: senior Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. A-S-1.3 '

SS-2019-BHHS-05-HOPWA-01-A02 Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MERRIMACK VALLEY

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on February 14,1995.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 225153

Certificate Number: 0005782443

0® IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 25lh day of May A.D. 2022,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Ellen Molnar, VP of Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc., hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Cierk/Secretary/Officer Vice President of l\/lerrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on October 11, 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Michael R. Mortimer, President of Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. (may list more than
one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

*' I ^ Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Ellen Molnar

Title: Vice President

A

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSUR/^CE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

10/06/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor$ement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

Eleanor Spinazzola

[aK„P.,v (603)293-2791 (603)293-7188
InrwlFSR' Eleanorsplnazzola@esinsurance.net

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAiC<

INSURER A
Great American insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program inc.

6 Loudon Rd Suite 402

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B
Wesco Insurance Co 25011

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22 REVISION NUMBER;
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EXP
IMWDO^YVYlTYPE OF INSURANCE

TOUZ

itiSo
SUBR
VWD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
IMIWDOn-YYY) LIMITS1n5r

LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X| OCCUR

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

X

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
ALfTOSONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTION S ''O-OOO
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Msndslory In NH)
If y«$. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below'

PAC 4457393 00

PAC 4457393 00

UMB 4457394 00

WWC3595332

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE-TO RENltD
PREMISES (Ea oecurrencel

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PROOUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEa acddentl

BODILY INJURY (Per persort)

BODILY INJURY (Per »cclder»0

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PeracddenO

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

STATUTE
OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1,000.000

2,000.000

2,000,000

'1,000,000

1.000.000

500.000

500.000

500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be atlached if more Space It required)

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

and

Independent Auditor's Report
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, TNC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2020 and 2019
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iVACHON CLUKAY
& Company PC

CERT/FIED PUBLIC ACCOUKTASTS

608 Chestnut Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
(603) 622-7070 • I'ux: (603) 622-1452 • www.vuchonchikay.coiii

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

Wc have audited the accompanying financial statements of Merrimack Valley Assistance
Program, Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.,We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perfomi the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements arc free from material misstatement.

An audit, involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc., as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Manchester, New Hampshire
September 3,2021
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2020 and 2019

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Grants and contributions receivable

. Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

2020

19,069

155,495

341

4.656

179,561

2019

S  5,115

148,096

2,440

155,651

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Property, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

143.429

143,429

150,754

150.754

S  322,990 S 306,405

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Accrued vacation time

Line of credit payable

Current portion of SBA note payable
Current portion mortgage note payable
Refundable advances

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

9,390

9,902

6,806

31,760

6,419
50.492

19.576

6,951

5.529

12,000

6,087

54,092

14,769 104,235

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

SBA note payable, net of current portion
Mortgage note payable, net of current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

50,940
141.587

192,527

307,296

147,450

147.450

251,685

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

15,694

15,694

54,720

54,720

$  322,990 S 306,405

See notes tofinancial statements
3
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

CHANCES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Grants and contracts

Rental income

Other revenue

Contributions

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE ' "

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

2020

903,729

19,354

1,557

251

924,891

2019

S  978,892

19,500

2,222

1,602

1,002,216

EXPENSES:

Program services:
Case management

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES

Supporting services:

Management and general

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL EXPENSES

854,308

854,308

109,609

109,609

963.917

911,548

911.548

102,162

102,162

1,013,710

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (39,026) (11,494)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - Beginning

NET ASSETS-Ending

(39,026)

54,720

(11,494)

66,214

15.694 . $ 54,720

See notes tofinancial statements
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Supporting

Ser\'ices Services

Case Management Total

Manaoement and General Exoenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries and Wages $  304,607 $  63,199 S  367.806

Contract Labor 63,013 63,013

Total Salaries and Wages "  ■ 367,620 63,199 430,819

Payroll Taxes 25,048 ■  1,275 26,323

Fringe Benefits 66,427 5,554 71,981

Total Taxes and Benefits 91.475 6,829 98,304

TOTAL PERSONNEL 459,095 70,028 529,123

OTHER EXPENSES:

Depreciation 7,325 7,325

Dues/Subscriptions 3,41 1 3,41 1

Educational ' 4,490' 4,490

Equipment Leases - 4,548 4,548

Housing/Utility Assistance 245,409 245,409

Insurance 12,208 '3,233 15,441

Interest 6,724 1,631 8,355

Meals and Food Supplies 2,848 2,848

Miscellaneous 4,754 4,754

OfTtce Supplies/Expenses 23,521 23,521

Postage 1,192 1,192

Printing and Copying 2,899 2,899

Professional Fees 18,002 18,002

Equipment Maintenance and Repair 7,828 7,828

Apartment Maintenance and Repair 1,337 1,337

Space and Occupancy 29,090 19,61 1 48,701

Supportive Services 21,967 21,967

Telephone/Internet 4,091 3,027 7,118

T ransportation/Travel 5,648 5,648

TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL 395,213 39,581 434,794

TOTAL EXPENSES $  854,308 $  109,609 $  963,917

See notes tofinancial statements
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Supporting

Services Services

Case Management Total

Manacement and General Exoenses

ALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries and Wages $  297,173 $  45,195 $  342,368

Contract Labor 61,470 61,470

Total Salaries and Wages 358,643 45,195 403,838

Payroll Taxes 21,960 721 22,681

Fringe Benefits 67,445 4,532 71,977

Total Taxes and Benefits 89,405 5,253 94,658

TOTAL PERSONNEL 448,048 50,448 .  498,496

)TIIER EXPENSES:

Depreciation - - 7,477 7,477

Dues/Subscriptions 2,626 2,626

Educational 3,394 3,394

Equipment Leases 4,308 ■  4,308

Housing/Utility Assistance 344,439 344,439

Insurance 9,749 5,333 15,082

interest 7,945 225 8,170

Meals and Food Supplies 35,733 35,733

Miscellaneous 192 192

OfTice Supplies/Expenses 8,439 204 8,643

Postage 990 96 1,086

Printing and Copying 540 540

Professional Fees 3,600 4,000 7,600

Equipment Maintenance and Repair 2,730 578 3,308

Apartment Maintenance and Repair 303 303

Space and Occupancy 17,106 31,250 48,356

Supportive Ser\'ices 6,354 .6,354

Telephone/Internet 5,256 2,312 7,568

Transportation/Travel 9,988 47 10,035

TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL 463,500 51,714 515,214

TOTAL EXPENSES $  91 1,548 $  102,162 $ 1,013,710

See notes tofinancial statements
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  (39,026) S  (1 1,494)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 7,325 7,477

Net effect of changes in:

Grants and contributions receivable (7,399) (47,574)

Accounts receivable 2,099 (1,285)

Prepaid expenses (4,656) 806

Accounts payable (10,186) 8,600

Accrued payroll 2,951 2,151

Accrued vacation time 1,277 506

Net cash used by operating activities (47,615) (40,813)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of equipment ■ (10,247)

Net cash used for investing activities - (10,247)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds (payments) on line of credit payable (12,000) 12,000

Proceeds on SBA note payable ■82,700
Payments on mortgage note payable (5,531) (5,900)
Payments on refundable advances (3,600) (3,600)

Net cash provided by financing activities 61,569 2,500

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 13,954 (48,560)

CASH - Beginning ^  ̂ 5,1 15 53,675

CASH - Ending S  19,069 S  5,115

Supplenienlal Disclosures:
Interest paid 8,355 " S 8,170

See notes tofinancial statements
1
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Mcrrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. (the Organlzalion) was organized as a nonprofit entity under
Section 50i{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization is a non-profit entity organized for the
purpose of providing a variety of supportive ser\'ices and housing assistance to persons with certain
infectious diseases. The Organization includes Greater Manchester AIDS Project, which was formed to
provide support and assistance to HlV/AlDS affected individuals and their families in the greater
Manchester, New Hampshire, area, and which was acquired by the Organization in 2000. The
Organization receives most of its support from government grants and private donations.

The accounting policies of Mcrrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. confonn to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The
Organization is required to report infonnation regarding its financial position and activities aecording to
the following net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Res/riclions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporaiy in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions arc perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in
substance, unconditional.

The Organization reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction
is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
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MERRIMACk VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Organization considers cash and cash equivalents
to include cash on hand and other cash accounts with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Grants and Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges and grants are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value
of the estimated fair value. Conditional pledges and grants arc recognized only when the conditions on
which they depend arc substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. All contributions and
grants receivable are considered current and expected to be received within one year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased items. Donated property and equipment is
record at.fair value as of the date of the donation. The Organization's policy is to capitalize assets
purchased, built, or leased with a useful life of one year or grcater-and*a cost of SliOOO or more or
expenditures for repairs or renovations of SI,000 or more that extend the life of the asset. Maintenance
and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over estimated lives of three to forty years. Depreciation expense was S7,325 and $7,477 for the years
ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Organization uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the Organization's policy to
charge off uncollectible accounts receivable when management determines the receivable will not be
collected. No allowance has been recorded for the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, because
management of the Organization believes that all outstanding receivables are fully collectible.

Estimates

The preparation qf financial statements in confomiity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions ;,that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of program and supporting services have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect .costs havCy^been allocated among the

programs and supporting sendees benefited. The Organization allocates salaries and wages, payroll taxes,



DocuSign Envelope ID; 248AB360-CD78-41A2-930A-A448F9A891C9

MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

and fringe benefit expenses based on time and effort. All other indirect costs, including professional
services, insurance, occupancy, and telephone expenses, are allocated to program services and general
administration based on allovvability of costs and availability of resources.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is ahso exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore; has made no
provision for Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the
Internal Revenue Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the
Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
(Form 990) with the IRS. FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accoiml'mg for
Income Taxes requires the Organization to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes.
The Organization had no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2020 and, accordingly docs not have any
unrecognized tax benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, grants and contracts receivable, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are
carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-
tenn nature of the transactions. The fair values detemiincd for financial instruments arc estimates, which
for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amount which could be realized upon immediate
liquidation.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Organization has adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08 Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which is meant
to assist entities in evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contr;ibutions
(nonreciprocal transactions), or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions, and determining whether a
contribution is conditional. Adoption of ASU 2018-08 was required for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after-December 15, 2018. Accordingly, the Organization has adopted the new
guidance as of July 1, 2019. The amendments in ASU 2018-08 are applicable only to the portions of
revenue or expense not previously recognized, and therefore have no impact on prior-period results or on
opening balances of net assets.

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, reduced by
amounts that arc not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of. financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

10
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the statement of financial position
date, comprise the following:

2020 2019

Cash $ 19,069 S 5,115
Grants and contributions receivable 155,495 148,096

Accounts receivable 341 2,440

total Financial Assets 174,905 155,651

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year LZ1;22^ $_J^5^6^

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Entity also could draw upon 528,000 of its available
line of credit, as further discussed in Note 8.

note 3—significant C0NCENTR/\TI0NS of CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances at local financial institutions-located in New Hampshire.
The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a combined total of
5250,000 per financial institution as of June 30, 2020. The bank balances may, at times, materially exceed
federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses on such accounts. The
Organization had no uninsured cash balance as of June 30, 2020.

NOTE 4—GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Major funding sources and related receivables for the periods ending June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows: - - -

2020 2019

Revenue Receivable Revenue Receivable

Mousing and Urban Development S 489,999 $ 58,113 5 567,369 , $ 79,982
Other Muman Ser\'ices Grants 273,136 89,483 205,779 48,600

Health and Human Services 131,594 7,899 154,894 16,246

State Grant in Aid 50,850 3,268

Other miscellaneous grants 9.000

5 903,729 5 155,495 $ 978,892 $ 148,096

II
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 5—PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT

Property, building and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Land $  41,117 S  41,117

Building and improvements 232,708 232,708

Furniture and equipment 16,935 16,935

Subtotal property, building, and equipment 290,760 290,760

Less accumulated depreciation (147,331) (140,006)

S  143,429 S  150,754

NOTE 6—SBA NOTE PAYABLE

During May 2020, the Organization obtained a note payable under the Paycheck Protection Program in
the amount of S82,700. Under the icnns of the agreement, the Organization is eligible to apply, for
principal forgiveness in whole or in part by the Small Business Administration under the CARES Act,
once certain eligibility criteria had been satisfied. Repayment on any remaining .balances following
forgiveness are due in equal monthly payments of $4,654 including interest at 1.00%, beginning
December 2021, with the entire unpaid balance due effective May 2022. Scheduled repayments of
principal, excluding potential principal forgiveness are as follows:

Year Ended

June 30. Principal

2021 .5 31,760

2022 50,940

$  82,700

NOTE 7—MORTGAGE NOTE PAYABLE

Notes payable at June 30, 2020 and 2019 consist of the following:

2020 2019

Note payable to a bank, bearing a variable interest rate, detemiined every

three years, at the Federal Mome Loan Bank Boston prime rate plus 3.50%,

currently 5.00%, collateralized by a first mortgage on real property and

certain bank accounts, due in monthly principal and interest payments,

currently $1,138, maturing October 31, 2035. S_^48^006 $_J^3j5^
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MERRIMACK VALLEY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Future maturities of notes payable as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Year Ended

June 30. Amount

2021 S  6,419

2022 6,748

2023 7,093

2024 7,439

2025 7,836

Thereafter 112,471

$  148,006

The Organization incurred $8,355 and $8,170 in interest expense on the notes payable during the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 8—LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a revolving line of credit with its primary bank in the amount of $28,000 with a,
variable interest rate at June 30, 2020 and 2019 of 3.75% and 6.00%, respectively. The line is secured by
a mortgage on the Organization's real property. The balance due. and payable on demand as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was SO and $12,000, respectively.

NOTE 9—REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

In previous years a private individual issued the Organization various non-intcresl-bearing advances with
no specific repayment terms. The balance of the Organization's refundable advances under these
agreements is $50,492 and $54,092 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The amount repaid to the
individual from the Organization was $3,600 during each of the year's ended June 30, 2020, and 2019.

NOTE ID—LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization is a tenant at will for its office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. Rental expense
for the rental lease during 2020 and 2019 was $39,450 and $39,300, respectively.

NOTE 11—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contracts with AIDS Service Organizations

The Organization has contracted with several AIDS scr\'ice organizations to deliver services in various
parts of the State of New Hampshire into fiscal year 2021. These commitments total approximately
$43,934 at June 30, 2020.

Federal Grants

The Organization receives funds under contracts from State and Federal sources, which require that the
Organization use the funds within certain periods and for purposes specified by governing laws and

13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

regulations. If expenses should be found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies because specific amounts, if any, have not been
detennined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2020.

NOTE 12—ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 97% and 98%, respectively, of the
Organization's total support and revenue was derived from five individual grants and contracts. The
discontinuation of these grants and contracts would result in a decrease in services provided by the
Organization, until alternative revenues could be obtained.

NOTE 13—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 3, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

14
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DANIEL AMATO

Professional Experience

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program - Manchester, NH

Director of Office Operations

HIV Case Manager

08/2021-Present

04/2021-08/2021

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program (MVAP) is the largest of four HIV/AIDS Service Organizations (ASO) in New

Hampshire. With three locations in Concord, Manchester, and Laconia, MVAP has a long-standing history amidst the
HlV/AlDS epidemic. MVAP offers case management services, housing assistance, nutrition and meal supplements,
supportive services, and community referrals to reduce barriers among clients living with HIV/AIDS.

•  Oversee office operations and staff performance at the three locations of MVAP including Laconia, Concord,
and Manchester, New Hampshire and ensure that all three locations operate as a single cohesive unit.

Supervise a staff of 9 individuals with an operating budget of 1.1 million.

Conduct data and reporting on all MVAP grants and coordinate with all AIDS Service Organizations (ASOs)
in New Hampshire to send off reporting to Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) and U.S
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

Compiled demographic and financial data from all four NH ASOs to produce and submit Annual
Performance Reports (APRs) to HUD.

Interface with Grantors arid ASOs to ensure they are fully complying with grant requirements, for which
MVAP is the Grantee and Project Sponsor and other three ASOs are the sub-grantees.

Develop, edit, and renew contracts as applicable.

Develop uniform polices, practices, and procedures that comply with grant and program requirements.

Hire, train, discipline, and terminate staff.

Coordinate with community partners and outside vendors so MVAP can utilize their services.

Direct and oversee all budgetary duties with various grants and develop strategic plans to spenddown if
necessary.

Apply for new grant and funding opportunities - secured MVAP funding for additional housing and support
services for clients.

Implement harm reduction focused prevention and screening through case management and supportive
services to 35+ clients - all living with HIV/AIDS.

Provide housing assistance, nutrition and supplement needs, dental care insurance, and community
resource referrals to all clients.

Collaborate with NH DHHS, insurance companies, medical providers, and community organizations to

provide a linkage to care for clients, aimed at reducing new infections and/or transmission, and increasing
access to care and treatment.

Provide and disseminate safer practice materials such as condoms and lubricant, Naloxone, and facilitate

access to syringe service programs.

Provide psychosocial assessments, acuity scales, and service care plans biannually to ensure clients are

. receiving the highest quality of care and maximizing their health insurance coverage.

Educate clients on sexual health, behavioral health, and substance use using risk reduction methodologies,

and promote related services found throughout the community.

Review CD4 and Viral Load lab values for all clients - discuss these lab values with them to promote

medication adherence and viral load suppression.

Redeveloped MVAP's website including its marketing, education, and outreach materials.

Met with realtors and successfully moved MVAP-Concord's location.
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NH HIV Planning Group 01/2021 • Present

Community Stakeholder, Advisory Committee & PrEP Committee

Boston Eligible Metropolitan Area (EMAJ Ryan White Planning Council 09/2022 • Present

Member, Council & Services, Planning, and Evaluation (SPEC) Comrhiltee

Amoskeag Health - Manchester, NH 9/2019 - 04/2022

Sexual Health Educator & Program Facilitator

Supported by both a federal and state grant, the Persona! Responsibility Education Program (PREP) engages youth ages

14-19 (or up to 21 if pregnant and/or parenting) in Sullivan County and the Greater Manchester Area to provide a

comprehensive sexual health education program designed to reduce adolescent pregnancy and STI's. With over 120

engaged participants per year, responsibilities are focused on program strategy, community outreach, training, and

facilitation.

•  Expanded relationship with key community partners (GSIL, NH job Corps, YMCA, and the Manchester

School District) to bring visibility the program and resources available to teens.

•  Established two new key partners (YWCA and Waypoint) through continuous engagement In the

community and building connections with key stakeholders and sharing the positive impact and success of

the new program curriculum.

•  Primary facilitator for the 'Get Real, Comprehensive Sex Education That Works' program designed by

Planned Parenthood and published by ETR, focused on 11 core lessons including topics such as: sexual

health, sexuality & gender, reproductive anatomy, pregnancy prevention methods, and STI's and HIV.

•  Overhauled the program training curriculum and reimagined the participant experience Including a remote

training plan, amended curriculum, and virtual workbooks and activities to ensure program stability during

COVlD-19.

•  Recognized by leaders in the Department of Maternal and Child Health Section within NHDHHS for setting

the standard for delivery of virtual sexual health classes in the State of NH.

•  Created and launched a comprehensive training program and supporting materials for new facilitators,
educators, and interns to ensure consistency in program delivery for participants.

•  Increased exposure and visibility for the program resources by managing all social media channels and

external messaging through targeted content creation to support community engagement and outreach.

•  Summarize and report key program effectiveness data to state and federal contracts at the conclusion of

each class.

LGBTQ-f Committee - Amoskeag Health 2019-2022

Chair

Marketing Committee & Education/Recruitment Committee - Equality Health Center 2021-2022

Committee Member

Lawrence General Hospital - Lawrence, MA 6/2017-9/2020

Cardiac Monitor Technician/Unit Secretary/Nursing Assistant

•  Monitored patient's heart rhythms and functions through cardiac monitoring strips and reported the

findings to MDs and RNs.

•  Assisted cardiac nurses with patient care and room preparation.

•  Conducted EKGs, bladder scans, and took vital signs.

•  Registered patients, reviewed consultation requests, and entered anticipated services to patient log.

•  Assisted the Charge Nurse with unit responsibilities, such as admissions and discharges.
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•  Trained new hires and oriented them to our medical floor.

Concord Hospital - Concord, NH 12/2014- 5/2017
Patient Registrar

•  Performed check-ins by welcoming the visitors and establishing the purpose of their visit.
•  Verified and entered patient information into the electronic health record system.
•  Coordinated with medical staff to process and direct patients to appropriate departments..

Notable accomplishments & Relevant Training

• Training of the Educator (TOE) - Planned Parenthood League of Massachusetts (2019)

•  Incorporating Social and Emotional Learning into Sexuality Education - Planned Parenthood League of

Massachusetts (2019)

• Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Conference - Family and Youth Services Bureau (2020)
• Advancing Excellence in Transgender Health - Fenway Health (2020)

• Presented for GLSEN NH with an Inclusive sex education panel (2020)

• National Conference on Social Work and HlV/AlDS-Collaborative Solutions, Inc (2021)

• HUD CARES Act Conference - U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (2021)

• National Ryan White Conference on HIV Care (2022)

• Leveraging HOPWA and other Public Funding to Improve HiV Health, Housing, and Employment - U.S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development (2022)

•  18th Annual Conference on HIV/AIDS & Aging (2022)

Educational Background

Graduate Certificate. Sexual and Reproductive Health 01/2022 - Present
Indiana University - Bloomlngton Expected: 12/2022

Bachelor of Science, Community Health Education 2021

Southern New Hampshire University

High School Diploma 2014

Bow High School
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Jeannine C. Eaton

Work Experience

2014 - Present - Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Concord, NH Bookkeeper

Maintain computerized Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Payroll files
Maintain monthly bank reconciliation and bank deposits
Perform monthly invoicing for grant reimbursement
Perform by-weekly payroll

Process quarterly state and federal payroll report and pay bi-weekly federal payroll deposit

1993 - 2014 - VHG Labs, Inc., Manchester, NH Bookkeeper/HR Assistant

Maintained computerized Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Payroll files.
Maintained monthly bank reconciliation, and daily bank deposits. • -

Reconciled dally credit card deposits.

Performed by-weekly payroll

Processed quarterly state and federal payroll report and paid bi-weekly federal payroll deposits.
Coordinated the transition from manual to computerized accounting using Peachtree
Accounting Software.

•  Have extensive knowledge of Microsoft Office, NetSuite financial software, QuickBooks and IPS
software.

1980-1992 - New Hampshire College and University Council, Manchester, NH Office Manager

Supervised two secretaries.

Maintained computerized payroll and direct deposit functions, accounts payable and general
ledger records.

Managed monthly bank reconciliation, purchasing, bank deposits, cash receipts ledger;
maintained general journal.

Word Processing Coordinator - Instructed co-workers in the use of word processing and
database programs;

used database software to support office programs which required extensive mailing list and
other database needs;

Coordinated electronic transmission of statistics; aided in setting up new computerized
accounting system

Used this software to maintain weekly accounts payable records and monthly general ledger
records.

Education

New Hampshire College, Manchester, NH - Graduated September 15,1984 - Bachelor of
Science Degree In Management Information Systems



DocuSign Envelope ID; 248AB360-CD78-41A2-930A-A448F9A891C9

f

Castle Junior College, Windham, NH - Graduated May 30,1976 - Associate in Business Science
Degree

Other Certification

Notary Public - commission expires January 29,2019

References available upon request
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Casey Lever

Summary: Compassionate and highly dedicated individual with 15 + years in childcare and 3
years in the human service field. Willingness to leam and works great individually and as part of
a team.

Education;

Granite State College
2011-2015

Bachelor of Science in Psychology
Associate of Science in Psychology

Manchester Community College
2001-2002

Teaching Certificate

Work History;

Families in Transition

Case manager: Shelter and Outreach of an Adult Emergency Shelter
August 2019-May 2021
Job Duties:

•  Case Management
•  Crisis Management
•  Outreach

• All Documentation was done in an Electronic Health Record System
•  Collaboration with community organizations

Harbor Homes-Maple Street Shelter
Support Worker
May 20, 2018-October 1, 2018
Job Duties:

•  Case Management
• Data entry and manage client files
•  Crisis Intervention

•  Completing intakes and exits for clients

Fed Ex

Package Handler
August 1, 2017-November 20, 2017

■ Job Duties:

•  Responsible for the physical loading.
• Unloading and/or sorting of packages by hand, including lifting, pushing, pulling,

carrying, and placing in a safe and efficient manner.
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Kimberly Ann Geraci

-■ ■■!■.• 'TJr

Work Experience

Southern New Hampshire Services February 2015 - Present Concord, NH

Contracted to theNH Department of Health and Human Services - Division of Economic and Housing Stability
Employment Counselor/Program Specialist - Assessment and Intervention Unit (AIU)

•  Provide individualized, time-sensitive, and trauma-informed case management services to statewide

TANF recipients who are enrolled in the NH Employment Program and requesting the Family Violence

Option good cause waiver, or who are otherwise experiencing barriers related to domestic and/or sexual

violence

•  Provide case management and crisis inter\'ention services to TANF recipients who are experiencing

acute mental health symptoms, and/or are actively using substances or are in recovery

•  Conduct needs assessments, using standardized screening tools, to develop individualized service plans

with action steps intended to remove barriers and increase a participant's safety, stability, and
employability, with a long-term goal of attaining self-sufficiency

•  Document and maintain accurate and thorough case notes and electronic files for each client

•  Provide clients with referrals to local crisis centers, legal services, behavioral health providers, housing

programs, CAP agencies, family resource centers, and other indicated services

•  Educate clients regarding other available local, state, and federal assistance programs, and assist them in

navigating the appiication/redetermination processes for benefits through DHHS

•  Provide education and training to DHHS staff and external community providers regarding NHEP, AIU

services, policies, and procedures

•  Train and mentor new staff members within the AIU

•  Track and compile client-specific outcomes data to evaluate program effectiveness and related impact

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center September 2012-February 2015 .. . Nashua,NH

Service Access Coordinator and Case Manager - Child and Adolescent Services

. • Responded to all requests, referrals, and inquiries regarding new and/or returning clients

•  Educated parents/guardians and community members about the agency's services for children,

adolescents, and families

•  Triaged and scheduled new clients for initial evaluations with therapists

•  Provided callers with referrals to other departments and other community agencies as needed

•  Obtained insurance information, verified coverage, and educated families regarding their benefits
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Geraci

•  . Collected and organized data relating to all intake caj[ls, to be reported .to the New.Hampshire Bureau of

Behavioral Health

•  Provided targeted case management to patients enrolled in the medication support program

•  Performed administrative assistant duties as needed, including front desk coverage, collections, and data

entry

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program September 2010 - August 2012 Nashua, NH

Contracted to Bridges: Domestic and Sexual Violence Support

Child Advocate

•  Provided advocacy and crisis intervention to primary and secondary survivors of domestic violence,

sexual assault, childhood sexual abuse, and stalking

•  Supported and educated families at Child Advocacy Center (CAC) interviews

•  Followed up with families after the CAC interviews to provide case management, support, personal

advocacy, and referrals

•  Coordinated with the multi-disciplinary team members - including DCYF, law enforcement, and

prosecutors - to meet the practical and emotional needs of families

•  Attended monthly case review meetings for southern Hillsborough County

• Maintained paperwork and statistics relating to all CAC interviews

•  Accompanied survivors to civil, criminal, and family court proceedings

•  Co-facilitated support groups for adult survivors of childhood sexual abuse and non-offending

caregivers of sexually-abused children

Volunteer Work

Sexual Assault Support Services (now Haven) September 2009 - August 2010 Portsmouth, NH

Client Service Advocate

•  Provided validation, education, and support to primary and secondary survivors of sexual violence

•  Responded to calls on a 24-hour support line

Education

Marlboro College 2009 Marlboro, VT

Bachelor of Arts - Psychology and American Studies
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Sean Tazzioli
Bachelor of Media and Communications Open to Opportunities

I am a Behavioral Health Technician excited to take the skills 1 have learned Into a new field!

Work Experience

Behavioral Health Technician
Avenues Extended Care - Concord, NH

November 2017 to Present

Avenues Extended Care Nov. 2019 - Present

Behavioral Health Technician Concord. NH

• Avenues Extended Care is an intensive recovery program in a residential setting
• As a BHT, I provide logistical support to clients and staff, front-line motivational interviewing, and
directly oversee team projects.
• Screened clients for COVID-19 and medical issues
. A track record of successful and highly impactful client interaction and retention in an industry with
a high overturn rate
• Trained to work in accordance with HIPAA

New England Recovery and Wellness Nov. 2017-Nov. 2019
Behavioral Health Technician Concord, NH

• N.E.R.A.W. was an inpatient substance abuse counseling center
• Distributed and audited medications

• Followed treatment team goals to provide a high level of HIPAA compliant care

Groundsman

BartlettTree Experts - Stamford, CT

June 2013 to August 2015

• BartlettTree Experts provides professional tree care services
. AS ground crew, I was responsible for on site cleanup and assisting climbing crew In the safe
maintenance of properties
• Operated as an Integral member of a team In high stress situations

Education

B.A. in Media/Communication
Southern Connecticut State University - New Haven, CT
June 2020
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Skills __

. Skills: motivational interviewing, intervention, team leading/management, stress management,
driving, media analytics

• interests: beckpacking, camping, hiking, building PC's, yoga, weight lifting, reading science fiction
• Behavioral Health ■ . _ ;

• Tree Care

• Public Relations

• Motivational interviewing

• Crisis Intervention

• Behavioral Therapy

• Social Media Management

• Senior Care

• Individual I Group Counseling

• Developmental Disabilities Experience

• Autism Experience

• Data Collection

• Proofreading

• HIPAA

• Social Work

Certifications and Licenses

Licensed Nursing Assistant
October 2019 to December 2019

. As an LNA, I provided hygiene care and physical care for elderly and at risk paj'ents

. Budgeted time to complete goals and provide care on a timed and variable schedule
• Utilized team building techniques to complete goals

American Red Cross First Aid Certification
June 2021 to June 2023

Adult, child, and baby first aid/CPR/AED training.

Assessments

Technical support — Proficient
November 2021

Performing software, hardware, and network operations
Full results: Proficient

Technical support — Proficient
November 2021

Performing software, hardware, and network operations
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Full results: Proficient

Medical receptionist skills — Proficient
November 2021

Managing physician schedules and maintaining accurate patient records

Full results: Proficient

Indeed Assessments provides skills tests that are not indicative of a license or certification, or continued
development in any professional field.

Groups

Media Studies Club, Vice President
June 2013 to May 2015

As VP, I organized Informative events about media literacy, impact, and usage. I was actively involved
In the presentation of these events and practiced public speaking and audience interaction.
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Jordan Lefebvre
Nashua Housing Authority Section 8 Case Manager

Authorized to v/ork In the US for any employer

Work Experience

Section 8 Case Manager
NASHUA HOUSING AUTHORI'IY - Nashua, NH

April 2021 to Present

• Review client applications for rental assistance.

■ Maintain accurate records.

• Determine client eligibility based on income,-deduction's and allowances, family composition, and

compute housing assistance payments and family rental rates according to U. S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development (HUD) regulations.

• Process annual recertification, Interim changes and/or moves including obtaining current third party .

verification of participant information in accordance with program requirements.

• Resolve concerns between tenant, landlord.

• Schedule and conduct group or individual presentations.

• Heavy data gathering and reporting of participant information to HUD.

• Perform other related duties as assigned.

• Strong analytical and problem-solving skills.

• Strong oral and written communication.

• Ability to interpret, apply and enforce program regulations.
• Ability to maintain accurate records.

• Ability to prioritize multiple projects utilizing effective time management skills.

• Ability to perform well under pressure in a fast-paced work environment.

• Ability to work with minimum supervision

• Ability to establish and maintain cooperative working relationships wjth staff, representatives of local

government, program participants, community-based organizations and the public.

Surgical Coordinator/Administrative Assistant
Lighthouse Surgical Suites, LLC - Holils, NH

February 2021 to April 2021

• Ensuring adequate preparation for surgeries by scheduling the necessary equipment and procedure

rooms and maintaining the surgical inventory.

• Understanding surgical procedures) such as the necessary time a surgery takes and the medical staff
necessary, in order to properly maintain a surgical schedule.

• Providing patients with Pre & Post Operative directions.

• Managing surgical documents, gathering & inputting patients Information, & entering
post-surgery data into patients' records

• Ensuring all surgical cases are scheduled in a timely manner in accordance with the
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Physician care team.

- Utilizing multiple confidential EMR systems.

• Responsible for opening & closing facility.

• Maintaining fluid communication betv/een Physician office's & facility.

• Handle all cash, check & credit card payments.

• Create documents for clinical staff & business office.

• Manage many excel tracking spreadsheets for record keeping/

• Obtaining prior authorizations for all surgical patients and maintaining communication
with many insurance companies.

Medical Receptionist
Southern New Hampshire Medical Center

2018 to 2020

- Organizing, filing & indexing all patient information for scanning & updating.

• Operating a Multi-Line phone system.

- Ability to effectively manage time throughout the day to execute daily job functions.

- Handling all Copayments from patients over the phone St hand to hand transactions.

• Staying compliant with HIPPA guidelines while utilizing multiple Electronic Medical Record Databases.

- Checking In patients St validating patient insurances in preparation for their appointments.

- Checking patients out following appointments with clinical staff.

Bank Teller/Customer Service Representative
TO Bank • Nashua. NH

2015 to 2017

• Presenting financial solutions to both existing & new customers by managing deposits, withdrawals as

well as other banking transactions for a high capacity of customers.
- Cross trained in various positions such as Customer Service Representative. Teller 2, & Qosing

Employee.

- Lead team meetings & supported in training new hire employees.

- Providing great customer service to all customers In a professional manner.

- Consistently exceeded quarterly goal explaining St encouraging bank products & services to consumers.

- Excellent verbal and telephonic communication skills.

Education

High School Diploma
Alvirne High School - Hudson, NH

September 2009 to May 2013

Skills

• Human Resources

• Medical Receptionist

• Recruiting

• Workers' Compensation

• Performance Management
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• Employee Orientation

• Payroll Management

• Onboarding

• Customer Relationship Management

• Customer Service

• Employee Evaluation

• English

• EMR Systems

• Billing

• ICO Coding

• Money Handling

• Money Management

• Closing

• Communications

• HIPAA

• CPT Coding

• Management

• ICD-10

• Medical Records

• Medical Billing

• Medical Coding

• Benefits Administration

• Insurance VeriHcation

• Medical Scheduling

• Transcription

• Conflict Management

• Epic

• Interviewing

• Medical Office Experience

• Paylocity

• Sales

• Anatomy Knowledge

• ICD-9

• Medical Terminology

• Financial Report Writing

• Accounting

• Auditing

• Google Suite

• Google Docs

• Analysis Skills
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• Case management (1 year)

• Social media management

• Case management (2 years)

Languages

• English - Expert

Assessments

Data entry: Accuracy — Expert
October 2020

Entering data quickly and accurately

Full results: Expert

Medical receptionist skills — Highly Proficient
February 2021

Managing physician schedules and maintaining accurate patient records

Full results: Hiohlv Proficient

Basic attention to detail Proficient

November 2021

Identifying differences in materials, following instructions, and detecting details among distracting

Information

Full results: Proficient

Customer focus & orientation — Highly Proficient
April 2020

Responding to customer situations with sensitivity

Full results: Hiohlv Proficient

Basic spreadsheets with Microsoft Excel — Proficient
March 2019

Measures a candidate's knowledge of basic Microsoft Excel techniques, including sorting, formatting,
and filtering of columns or rows.

Full results: Proficient

Spreadsheets with Microsoft Excel ̂  Completed
February 2020

Excel knowledge including common tools, PIvotTables. conditional & nested formulas, and custom

visuals.

Full results: Completed

Work style: Conscientiousness — Proficient
October 2020

Tendency to be well-organized, rule-abiding, and hard-working
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FuU results: Proficient

Customer service — Completed
October 2020

Identifying and resolving common customer issues

Full results:

Administrative assistant/receptionist Proficient
November 2021

Using basic scheduling and organizational skills in an office setting

Full results: Proficient

Electronic health records: Best practices — Proficient
February 2020

Knowledge of EHR data, associated privacy regulations, and best practices for EHR use

Full results: Proficient

Case management & social work — Proficient
October 2020

Prioritizing case tasks, gathering information, and providing services without judgment

Full results: Proficient

Working with MS Word documents — Highly Proficient
November 2020

Knowledge of various Microsoft Word features, functions, and techniques

Full results: Hlohlv Proficient

Indeed Assessments provides skills tests that are not indicative of a license or certification, or continued

development in any professional field.
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Merrimack Valley Assistance Program
HOPWA-Manchester Grant

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Daniel Amato Director of Office Operations 58,000 5% S 3,093
Jeannine Eaton Bookkeeper 26,520 39% S 10,400
Casey Lever Case Manager 43,264 13% $ 5,766
Kim Geraci Case Manager 44,000 13% $ 5,865
Sean Tazzioli Case Manager 42,000 13% $ 5,460
Jordan Lefebvre Case Manager 43,680 13% $ 5,678
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Chriillne L. Sinlanlcllo

Dlr«ctor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 1.000^52-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wM>r.dhht.nh.gov

Julys, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION .

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc., (VC#157934). Concord, NH, to provide housing
and utility assistance and supportive services to low Income persons and their families living with
Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), by
Increasing the price limitation by $81,795 from $719,178 to $800,973, effective retroactive to April
3, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 17,2019, Item #12.
The Department will be submitting a future request to Governor and Council to exercise a renewal
option and extend the completion date from March 31. 2022, to April 3, 2023.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020. with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Requested
A(^on -
Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $59,932 $0 $59,932

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc TBD $239,726 $81,795 $321,521

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $239,726 $0 $239,726

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc TBD $179,794 $0 $179,794

Total $719,178, $81,795 $800,973

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission (s to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) requires the amendment effective date to match the start date of the grant,
which, In the Interest of providing a quick response to the COViD-19 pandemic, HUD dated
retroactive prior to the Department receiving the grant award notice. HUD guidelines permit
COVID-19 related funds provided through this request to be invoiced retroactive to the grant start
date. This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to provide timely supportive services related to the COVID-
19 pandemic, In addition to housing and utility assistance, for low income persons and their
families living with HIV/AIDS during the COVID-19 public health crisis. Through this Housing
Opportunities for Persons With Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HOPWA) Program, the
Department seeks to ensure ongoing housing and utility assistance, and COVIO-19 related
supportive services, for this highly vulnerable population while maximizing their ability to live more
independently.

The exact number of individuals and families served under this agreement is dependent
upon the trajectory of the COVID-19 public health crisis. However, the program is anticipated to
support at le:dst twenty (20) households through tenant-based, long-term rental assistance; fifty
(50) households through short term rent, mortgage and utility assistance; and one hundred forty
(140) households will be served through supportive services, including thlrty-slx (36) households
receiving housing Information supports, between April 3, 2020, and April 3, 2023.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tods:

•  Required annual compliance reviews.

•  Statistical reports and timely and accurate data entry into the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS) relative to outcomes and
activities of housing and supportive services programs.

Area sen/ed: Manchester, Bedford and Goffstown, New Hampshire. (HOPWA services for
the Balance of State are provided through a separate contract administered through the New
Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports).

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.241, FAIN # NH-H2001W073

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds vvill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

II

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



His Excellency, Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
Page 3 of 3

I hereby approve this request pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive
Order 2020-04, as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, and
2020-14, and suspend the Manual of Procedures 150, V.. B., 1 requirement.

Date Name: Governor Christopher T. Sununu
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

division OF ECONOMIC A HOVS!NGSTABIUTY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-000-052.3343 Eit 9474

Fu: 603-271-4230 TDD Aectss: 1-SOO-73S-2964 innr^bbLah.g0v

July21,2020

Hts Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundi

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACHOW

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic"and Housing
Stability to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existinig contract with Merrimack Valley
Assistarice Program. Inc., (VC#157934). Concord. NH, to provide housing and utility assistance and
supportive services to low income parsons and their families IMng with Human Immunodeficiency
Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), by exercising a cofttrad renewal option
by extending the completion date from March 31,2022 to April 3.2023, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Coundi on April 17. 2019, item #12.
Governor Sununu. recently approved the addition of $81,795 of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act funds for timely supportive services and losing and utility
assistance for low income persons arid their families liWig with HIV/AIDS during the COVID-19
pandemic (see corresponding Informational Item).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availabBity and continued appropriation of funds
In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget Dno items within the priro limitation
and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-85-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

State Fiscal
Year ,

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $59,932

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TED $321,521

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $239,726

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $179,794

Total $800,973



His ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

J  . _ ,

This request Is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to extend the contract to continue providing tin>ely supportive
senrices and housing and utility assistance for low income persons and their families living with
HIV/AIDS. Through this Housing Opportunities for Persons With Acquired Immune Deficiency
Syndrome (HOPWA) Program, the Department seeks to ensure ongoing housing and utility
assistance for this highly vulnerable population while maximizing their ability to live more
independently.

The program Is anticipated to support at least twenty (20) households through tenant-based,
long-term rental assistance; fifty (50) households through short term rent, mortgage and utility
assistance; and one hundred forty (140) households will be senred through supportive services,
Including thirty-six (36) households receiving housing information supports, between April 3, 2020
and April 3.2023.

The Department will monitor contracted senrices using the following tools:
•  Required'annua! compliance reviews.
•  Statistical reports and timely and accurate data entry into the New Hampshire

Homeless Management Information Sy^em (NH HMIS) relative to outcomes and
activities of housing and supportive services programs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2 of the
original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to three (3) additional
years, contingertt upon satisfactory delivery of services, available furxling, agreement of the parties
and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew senrlces for
one (1) of the three (3) years available.

/•

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, housing and supportive services
for tow income individuals and their families living with HIV/AIDS may not be available in the
Manchester. Bedford and Goffstown areas, and there may be an Increase In demar>d for services
placed upon the region's local welfare authoritjes. It may also cause individuals and their families
living with HIV/AIDS to become homeless.

Area served: Manchester, Bedford ai^ Goffstown. New Hampshire. (HOPWA services for
the Balance of State are provided through a separate contract administered through the New
Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports).

• Source of Funds: CFDA #14.241, FAIN # NH-H2001W073

In the event thiat the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Th« O^rbncnl ofHtoUh and Human Stnieta' hfintioii it ta iain communUks and fomUkt
'  in prauiding apportunilitt for dtmnt to ochkv* SeaU/t and indtpondtnee.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Prpgram Manchester

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #1 to the
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program Manchester Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Housing Opportunitres for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program Manchester
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Slate" or "Department") and
Merhmack Valley Assistance Program. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business located at 8 Wall Street, Concord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor. and Executive Council
on April 17, 2019, (Item #12). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In'the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the parties agree to extend
the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

' 1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

April 3, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$800,973.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4., Contract Administration, by adding Subsection
4.7.. to read:

4.7. The Contractor shall use the funding provided through the Housing Opportunities for
Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program. Manchester, Grant # NH-H2001W073, to respond
to the COVID-19 pandemic through the purchase and provision of the following items,
including but not limited to:

4.7.1 f Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), sanitizing and cleaning products;

4.7.2. PPE education and instructions;

4.7.3. Food. Nutrition and Transportation services, including but not limited to:

4.7.3.1. Gift cards, groceries and grocery delivery;

4.7.3.2. Assistance with taxi or Uber fees for employment, medical or general
appointments, and shopping;

4.7.4. Case Management services to assist clients with various items, including but not limited
to, those listed above;

4.7.5. Resource identification and planning services to ensure a rapid response to

Merrimack Valley Assistarxie Program, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials ep

SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 Page 1 of 4 Date 7/Mno2o



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

emergencies and infectious disease outbreaks;

. 4.7.6. Leasing assistance for motel or hotel quarantine stays; and

.4.7.7. Short-term mortgage, utility and rental assistance due to increased unemployment
levels related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. by adding Subsection
to read:

1.1.1. This contract is funded In part by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as
follows:

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

0%

100%

14.241

NH-H2001W073

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

Office of Community Planning and Development

Housing Opportunities for Persons Witti AIDS (HOPWA) ,
Funds allocation under this agreement for HOPWA;

COVID-19 Related Costs:

NH General Fund:

Federal Funds:

CFDA #:

Grant Numl>er

Federal Agertcy:

Federal Office:

1.7. -• Program Title:

1.8.

1.9.

April 3, 2020 - April 3, 2023 not to exceed: $81.795

1.1.1.10. Total program amount: $81,795

1.1.2. Grant#: NH-H170020, March 1. 2018 - February28. 2021: $719,178

1.1.3. Grant #: NH-H2001W073, April 3, 2020 - April 3. 2023: $81.795

1.1.4. ■ Total Program, Funds,- March 1.2018 - April 3.2023: $800,973

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, lr>c. Amendment #1

SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials t**

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effectlvelo April 3,2020 upon the date of Governor approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

Date \ NTme: o

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program. Inc.

7/14/2020

Date Namei^jcuzabeth Posey
Title: . Executive Director

Merrlmsck Valley Assistance f^rogram. inc. Amendment #1

SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 P8ge3of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

The preceding Amendment, having been reviev^'ed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

07/14/20

Date Name:

Title: Catherine Pines, Attorney

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, inc. /Vnendment #1

SS-201&«HS-05-HOPWA^1 Page 4 ol 4
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1
JUL20'20 ml0:22 DflS

Lorl A. SblblBcnc

Comnlnioacr

Cbristlae L. SiatinicDo
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILHY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-ttllW52-3345 Eit 9474

Pax: 603-271-4230 TDDAccew: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhj.nb.gov

July 13. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4:45. RSA 21-P:43. and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04, as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05. 2020-08, 2020-09. 2020-10. and 2020-14, Governor
Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive. Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with fWlerrimack Valley Assistance Program. Inc.. (VC#157934), Concord, NH. to provide
supportive services during the COVID-19 pandemic to low income persons and their families living
with Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), by
increasing the price limitation by $81:795 from $719.178 to $800,973. effective retroactive to April
3. 2020.100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 17. 2019. item #12.
Funds are available in the following account for Slate Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with

the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Requested
Action -

Incroaso

(Oocroase)

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $59,932 $0 $59,932

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $239,726 $81,795 $321,521

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $239,726 $0 $239,726

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $179,794 $0 $179,794

Total $719,178 $81,795 $800,973

ThtDtporimtnl of Htahh and Humon Ssroicts'Mittion i» lojoin conimun/tiM ondfamUi9$
in providing opportuniiies for cUittns to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislophcr T. Sunynu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The Department requested that the Governor retroactively approve this amendment
because the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires the
amendment effective date to match the start date of the grant, which, in the interest of proving
a quick response to the COVID-19 pandemic. HUD dated retroactive pnor to the Department
receiving the grant award notice. HUD guidelines permit COVID-19 related funds provided
through this request to be invoiced retroactive to the grant start date. This item is Sole Source
because the contract was originally approved as sole source and MOP 150 requires any
subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this amendment is.to increase funding to provide timely supportive
services related to the COVID-19 pandemic, in addition to housing and utility assistance, for low
income persons and their families living with HIV/AIDS during the COyiD-19 public health crisis.
Through this Housing Opportunities for Persons With Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
(HOPWA) Program, the Department seeks to ensure ongoing housing and utility assistance, and
COVID-19 related supportive services, for this highly vulnerable population while maximizing their
ability to live more independently.

The exact number of individuals and families served under this agreement is dependent
upon the trajectory of the COViD-19 public health crisis. However, the. program is anticipated to
support at least twenty (20) households through tenant-based, long-term rental assistance: fifty
(50) households through short term rent, mortgage and utility assistance; and one hundred fo^
(140) households will be served through supportive services. Including thirty-six (36) households
receiving housing Information supports, between April 3, 2020. and April 3. 2023.^ ■

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:
•  Required annual compliance reviews.

•  Statistical reports and timely and accurate data entry Into the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS) relative to outcomes and

"  activities of housing and supportive services programs.

Area served: Manchester. Bedford and Goffstown. New Hampshire. (HOPWA services for
the Balance of State are provided through a separate contract administered through the New
Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports).

Source of Funds: CFDA#14.241. FAIN # NH-H2001W073

In the even! that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of He~alth and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #1 to the
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program Manchester Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program Manchester
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor). a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business located at 8 Wall Street, Concord, NH 03301. . .
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Conlracr) approved by the Governgr and Executive Council
on-April 17,*2019. (Item #12). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions 'specified in the Contract and in consideration of certairi sums specified; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the parties agree to extend
the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation,.and modify the scope of services to support-
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
April 3, 2023. . '

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read: "
$800,973.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block i .9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
■603-271-9631.

'5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 4., Contract Administration, by adding Subsectipn
4.7., to read;

4.7. The Contractor shall use the funding provided through the,Housing Opportunities for
Persons with Aids (HOPWA) Program. Manchester. Grant # NH-H2001W073, to respond
to the COVID-19 pandemic through the purchase and provision of the following items,
including but not limited to:

4.7.1. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), sanitizing and cleariing products;
4.7.2. PPE education and instructions;

4.7.3. Food. Nutrition and Transportation services, including but not limited to:
4.7.3.1. Gift cards, groceries and grocery delivery:
4.7.3.2. Assistance with taxi or Uber fees for employment, medical or general

appointments, and shopping;

4.7.4. Case Management services to assist clients with various items, including but not limited
to, those listed above;

4.7.5. Resource identification and planning services to "ensure a rapid response to

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program. IrK. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials ^
■SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 Page 1 of 4 OateiHi^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

emergencies and infectious disease outbreaks;

4.7.6. Leasing assistance for motel or hotel quafahtihe'stays; and

4.7.7. Short-tefm mortgage, utility and rental assistance due to increased unemployment
levels related to the C0\/ID-19 pandemic.

6. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, by adding Subsection
1.1.1., to read:

1.1.1. This contract is funded In part by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal
funds'made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA),.as
follows":

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.1.1.10.

0%

100%

"14.241 '

NH-H2001W073

U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

Office of Community Planning and Development

Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA)

Funds allocation under this agreement for HOPWA;

COVID-19 Related Costs:

April 3, 2020 - April 3. 2023 not to exceed: $81.795

Total program amount: $81,795

NH General Fund:

Federal Funds:

CFDA #:

Grant Number:

Federal Agency:

Federal Office:

Program Title:

1.1.2. Grant#: NH-H170020, March 1. 2018 - February28, 2021: $719,178

1.1.3. Grant #:NH-H2001W073. April 3. 2020 - April 3.2023: $81.795

1.1.4. Total Program Funds, March 1,2018 - April3.2023: $800,973

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program. Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2019-BH.S-C5-HOPWA-01 Page 2 of 4
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I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AiDS (HOPWA) Program Wlanchester

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to April 3,2020 upon the date of Governor approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date lame;

Wee
CA.O'Vxo'ulU Cb
H-S

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program. Inc.

7/14/2020

Date Namei^Jcnzabeth Posey
Title: Executive Director

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, lr>c, Amendment

SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 Page 3 of 4
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f

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) Program Manchester

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . - _

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

07/14/20

Dale Name.
Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program, Inc. Amendment

SS-2019-BHS-05-HOPWA-01 Page 4 of 4
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JUL21 '20 mlVOl DAS

Jeffrey A. Meyen
Cooimiuioner

Cbriitioe L. SaRttakdo
Oimior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department OF_HEAl.TH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/ra/ON OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-800-a52-3345EiL9474

Fii: 603-271-4230 TDDAcce«: l-«00.73$.2964 svww.dhhs.oh.gov

March .18. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arsd the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability to enter into a retroactive, sole source agreement with Merrimack Valley
Assistance Program. Inc. (vendor# 157934-B001). 8 Wall Street. Concord. NH 03301, to provide
supportive services, rental assistance, housing information and mortgage and utility payments to
low income persons, and their families, living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) /
Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), in an amount not to exceed $719,178. to be
■effective retroactive to April 01. 2019, upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval',
through March 31, 2022. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for Stale Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020 through SFY 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with the ability to adjust amounts within the
price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office,
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAMS.

State Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number
Total

Amount

2019 102^500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $59,932

■  2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $239,726

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $239,726

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices TBD $179,794

Total $719,178
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■ I

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source agreement because the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) issued public notice CPO-18-07 on May 09. 2018 for renewal funding
requiring the Department to specify the State's designated Housing Opportunities for Persons
with Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HOPWA) Program Sponsor Agency during the
federal application process prior to the grant award being Issued., The vendor's Federal Renewal
Application was scored and approved by HUD, however, HUD did not sign and issue the resultant
grant agreement until February 14. 2019 due to an extended federal government shut-down. The
Department received, and immediately-signed, this grant agreement on February 19. 2019,
however the federal delay did not allow sufficient time to complete the contracting.process prior

•  to the submission deadline for Governor and Executive Council approval in March. It is therefore
necessary to make this agreement retroactive to ensure uninterrupted delivery of HOPWA-
funded services for the April 01. 2019grant start dale, as specified by HUD.

The purpose of this agreement is to allocate HOPWA Program grant funds," provided to
the State by HUD. to homeless, low-income persons, and their families, living with HIV/AIDS as
part of a coordinated effort to alleviate homelessness through the provision of supportive services
and rent, mortgage and utility assistance to this vulnerable population.

Successful continued renewal of this grant is contingent upon maintaining consistent
services and positive service outcomes through an established Sponsor Agency. The Sponsor
Agency must be a service provider with both the capacity to serve the Manchester area and v/ilh
a history of providing services through the HOPWA Program grant. Merrimack Valley Assistance
Program, Inc. was awarded the role of the State's Sponsor Agency as a result of a HUD-
administered competitive procurement process in 1999, and has successfully provided the
required program services since that time.

The initiatives in this program focus on the following services: up to twenty (20) households
supported through tenant-based, long-term rent assisla.nce; fifty .X50).-households receiving
assistance with short term rent, mortgage and utility assistance and one hundred forty (140)
households provided with supportive services, including thirty-six (36) households receiving

■ housing information services.

The Department ensures contract compliance and provider performance through the
requirement of annual compliance reviews, statistical reports and timely and accurate data entry
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS), The NH HMIS
is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of the shelter and housing programs
funded through the Department.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, housing and
supportive services for low income and very low income individuals, and their families, who are
living with HIV / AIDS may not be available in the Manchester. Bedford and Goffslovvn areas, and
there may be an Increase in demand for services-placed upon the region's local welfare
authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families living with HIV / AIDS to become
homeless.

Area served: Manchester. Bedford and Goffstown, New Hampshire. HOPWA-funded
services for the Balance of State are provided through a separate federal housing grant
administered through .the New Hampshire Bureau of Housing Supports by way of a separate
contract.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Housing Opportunities for Persons with Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
Program, grant numbers: NH-H15-0020 and NH-H18-0019. Office of Community Planning and
Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA) #14.241.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

rey . Meyers
missioner

Tf}9 Oepdmcnl of Health and Human Sarvicas'Missioo is to/oin cxynmunilias aiyd lamilias
in providing opportunities lor citizens to achieve health and indeper)denca.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnioe S/8/IS)
Subject: Houaina Qpoominiiies for Pcffow ^yith AIDS fHOPWAy Manchester. SS-2Q19-BHS-Q3-HOPWA-01

Notice: This agrccmcni and &]lof its attachments shall become public upon submission to Coven>or and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndcntia) or propriclaiy must
be-cleaHy identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. -

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENERAJL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.
I.I State Agency Name
NH Dcpanmcol of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH0330I-3I57

1.3 Contractor Name
Mcrrimack Valley Assistance Program. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
8 WBliSireei

Concord. NH 0330!

r.S Contractor Phone
Number

(603) 226-0607

1.6 Account Number '

05-93-42-423010-7927-102-
S0073I

1.7 Completion Dale

03/31/2022

1.8 Price Limitation

J7I9.178

1.9 Contracting OfUccr for Slate Agency
Nathan D. White. Director -

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title orConirncior Signatory

UxJlxr<^r^ Co\\AriS-U^'»\<£0,

1.13 Acknowledgement; Stale of l/ H ■ County of '"Jyi ^

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/h^'^^ie6{Q£2l25Q^Saii^cnt in the capacity

the person i^pptfff6^f/rb;(^k 1.12, or satisfactorily

indicated in block 1.12. AHL.
1. 13.1 Signature opH^lajy Public or Justice of the Peace '

C
COMMISSION

=  : oPiRSS
=  : DEC. 19,2023

1.13.2 Name and TWc of Notary or Justice of the Peace

C. B.
I.M^Statc Agency Stature ^ 1.13 y4ame and Title of State Agency Signatory'

\  ojJutI I'? IClli-iKtfftiiibii'tfflll pm.am
1.16 Approval by l^c \I.H. Department oTAdmirastrBiiolt, Division of Personnel (7/applicable)

l)y; VJ Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Ailomcy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifoppticabU)

1.18 Approvofby (he

By:

On;

r and Executive Council Of opp^'coblc)

On:

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOVMENTOFCONTRACTORySERVICeSTO
BE PERFORMED. The Siaie of New Hampshire, acling
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified end more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference -
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive'Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcrcundcr, shall become elTcctivc on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block. I. IS. unless no such approval is required, in svhich case
(he Agreement shall become effective on the date the'
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTcctivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to (he
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of poyments hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
hove the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds frorn any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in thai -

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are idemined and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 0 which is incorporated herein by reference,
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for alt
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right lo offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 60:7'e or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement lo the
contrary, and nctwiihstojiding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH CAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with (he performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall corhply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, incl.uding vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, (he Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During (he term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminoie against employees or applicants for
employment because of race; color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmaiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of (he
United States, (he Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order NO'11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pert 60), and with any ruin, regulations and guidelines
OS the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall el its own expense piuvide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. T^c Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualincd to ̂ rform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
lows.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall noi permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation withwhom it is engaged in a combined efforl to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administrotionor performance of (his
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Agreen>cnt. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAUtTfREMEDIES.
8.) Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcunder
("Event of Defauli"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Ocfauii, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agfccment, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrvc to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Stale
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Evcnt.ofOefault; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue anyofiis
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
oil whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agrwment, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any rcasor).
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be goverrted by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other, existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION, in the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, end the contract price earned, to
' and including (he date of termination. The form, subject

martcr, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers- compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its cmployecs.

12. ASSlCNMENTfDELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written rioticc and
consent of the State.-None of the Services shall be

subconlraclcd by the Conlracior without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shell defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers end
employees, from and against ony and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and'ony and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behol f of any person, on a<MOunt of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of (he
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign Immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE. ■ ,
14.) The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance bgainsi all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 .OOO.OOOper occurrence and 52,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
properly subject to subparagriiph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80Vo of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of

•  insurance,-and issued by Insurers licensed in (he State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, 0 certificsiefs)
of insurOTKe for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish 10 the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of.,
insurance for all rene\val(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificaie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer ideniified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modificaiion of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
cenifles end warnints that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 2SI -A'.
("Workers' Comptnsolion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shoil
maintain, and require any subcontracior or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer idcniined In block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of WorVers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorportiied herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof af^er any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pony hereto (0 the other pony
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given ot the
lime of mailing by cenificd mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Orfice addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in wTliIng signed
by the panics hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This.Agrecment shall be construed in accordance with the
lows of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used In (his Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express (heir mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third ponies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the AgrecrrKnl
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inierpreiaiion, construction or meaning of the
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of compcieni jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and .
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements end understandings relating hereto. '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

-Exhibit A

SCOPE OP SERVICES

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contfary. all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Housing Opportunities for.Persons with AIDS
(HOPWA) Grant. The State has applied for the HOPWA Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it will
receive the funds, in no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any
services performed by the Contractor prior to the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the
HOPWA Grant.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or stale court orders may have an impact on the services descril>ed herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance.therewith.'

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons vrith limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within (en (10) days of the contract effective dale; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has ideritifted the Contractor as a
subrecipienl. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et $eq.

1.5. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not t>e liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has-t>een received from
the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennium.

1.6. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), HUD,
the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the Comptroller General of the United Slates, or any
of their authorized representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers,
or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the HOPWA grant, in order to make audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to,(he required
retention period, but last as long as the records are retained. •

1.7. The State's designated HOPWA project sponsor agency is required to review and comply with the
following documents, in the course of fulfilling this agreement, including, but not limited to:

1.7.1. HOPWA regulations (24 CFR 574) and related income calculations:

1.7.2. Regulations(24CFRPart5.609. _.6n and_.617);

MVAP ExMbil A Contfsdo' UAUis
KOrWA MMCAnls/ (fy<0>23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

EMhIPItA

.1.7.3. Copies of 0MB Circulars A-110 (on grants and agreements), A-102 (on cost principles) and
A-133 (on audits) and for governmental agencies, copies of 0MB Circulars A-87 (on cost
principles) and A-122 (on grants and cooperative agreements):

1.7.4. The schedule and format for data collection and performance reporting; and

1.7.5. The schedule and format for invoicing procedures.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follovy NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and lime required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. Failure to submit required reports or enter data into NH HMIS in a timely fashion could result in
the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries.are
confirmed by-BHS.

1.10. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questionsi-related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records,

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall participate in the Coordinated Entry System (CES) of NH for all projects
funded by the CoC Program. ESG Program, and HOPWA Program, in accordance with the CoC
Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize funding
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Office of Community
Planning and Development, HOPWA Grant as indicated in Exhibit B, Method and Conditions
Precedent to Payment, of this agreement.

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide services including, but not limited to, tenant-based, long-term,
rentalv assistance; short-term rent, mortgage and utility assistance; housing information
services; supjportive services and project administrative costs.

2.2.2. Services shall only be provided to clients who meet the federal eligibility standards for.
HOPVVA services to facilitate the procurement and retention of safe, affordable housing.

2.2.3. The Contractor agrees to provide eligible services in compliance with ail HUD regulations
. detailed In 24 CFR Part 574 - HOPWA. ■

2.3. The Contractor agrees to comply with the program and budget narratives in the renewal
applicalion submitted to HUD. The Contractor shall, directly, or by way of approved subcontractor,
provide Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS)
housing opportunities, education, prevention/intervention activities, and supportive services to
Greater Manchester.

MVAP Exhibit A CoMrtcter InlU
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A - .

2.3.1. The Contfactor shall make all appropriate referrals needed by service applicants.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state confidentiality laws.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: In accordance with 24 CFR 574.520(b). Within 45 (45) days
after the end of each 12-month operating period, an Annual Performance Report (APR)
shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing
in particular how the Project Activities have been performed, This report shall Include all
HUD required data and documents and an aggregate summarization of clients served in
each activity category. The APR shall be in the form required by HUD and submitted to
the HOPWA program administrator at BHS (or a BHS designee) via electronic mail.

3.1.2. Other Repods as requested by the State In compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. Technical assistance will be utilized to increase housing availability for persons with HIV/AIDS,
provide education to landlords, nonprofit housing developers and public housing airthorrties, and
provide training to case managers and consumers based upon needs assessment findings.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that cultural competency trainings are conducted for case
managers, and other service agency staff.

I

4.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure that trainings are conducted for new case managers
regarding housing resources. •

/

4.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure that quarterly meetings are held with case managers
regarding housing needs, resource updates, and service needs.

4.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all staff are aware of HUD and HOPWA regulations and
requirements, training resources and program guidance available from HUD.

4.2. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested.
by BHS. To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the contractor of the need to attend such
meetings five (5) working days in advance of each meeting.

4.3. The Bureau Administrator of BHS or designee may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement: however, these personnel may not unreasonably interfere with
contractor performance.

4.4. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes wilhin thirty (30) days of the change.

4.5. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of the contract
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions
arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

MVAP Contr*ctOf InftWi
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4.6. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial limitations may
be'made upon mutual, written agreement betweeri the Contractor and BHS.

6. Deliverables

5.1. Over the grant period, the Contractor shall provide the following services:

5.1.1. A targeted goal of twenty (20) households assisted through tenant-based, long-term rental
assistance payments to maintain participants in safe, permanent housing of their choice:

5.1.2. A targeted goal of fifty (50) households assisted through short-term rent, mortgage and
utility payments to prevent homelessness. Short-term assistance is to stabilize
participants in a brief crisis, to prevent evictions, utility disconnection, or homelessness,

. or to bridge financial gaps while accessing long-term benefit programs:

5.1.3. A targeted goal of one-hundred-forty (140) households assisted with supportive services
including, but not limited to, case management, counseling and other supports essential
for participants to access and maintain safe and permanent housing;

5.1.4. A targeted goal of thirty-six (36) households assisted with housing information-services
including, but-not limited to, counseling, information and referrals in assisting eligible
persons to locate, acquire, finance and maintain housing; and

5.1.5. Project Administrative Costs including, but not limited to, oversight of HOPWA staff,
ongoing assessment of the process of services data collection and reporting, billing,
managing accounts and audits.

MVAP CxNMlA - C«nu»oorlnU
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS. Manchester Program Fundlno

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and In consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block '
1.8. Price Limitation and for the lime period specified below.

1.2. This contract Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows;

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA«: 14.241

1.2.4. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.5. Federal Office: Office of Community Planning and Development"

1.2.6. Program Title: Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)

1.2.7. Funds allocation under this agreement for HOPWA;

1.2.7.1. AprlM. 2019 • May 31. 2019: Grant #NH-H15-0020 not to exceed SubTotal: $5,662

1.2.7.2. April 1. 2019 - March 31. 2022: Grant #NH-H18-0019 not to exceed SubTotal: $713.616

1.2.7.3. Total amount HOPWA not to exceed Grand Total: $719,178

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reoofts

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the follovring:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report; The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the Stale at the following address:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200. within ninety (90)
days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall be
submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
•Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions' by the
Comptroller General of the United States. ' ^ \
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Exhibit B

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used.in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance, of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with HOPWA
regulations, and with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 and as amended, and in accordance vnth the rules, regulations, and guidelines
established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part
200.

3.2. Subcontractors: The contractor agrees to request and receive prior written, approval from the
State to engage any subcontractors under this Agreement, and further agrees to pay the
expenses of any subcontractors awarded under-this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit A.
Scope of Services.

3.3. Payment of Project Costs: The State agrees to utilize funds as provided through the HUD
HOPWA Program for tenant-based, long-term, rental assistance; short-term rent, mortgage and
utility assistance; housing information services: supportive services and project administrative
costs in payments in accordance with such other schedules as may be required by HUD under
the provisions of 24 CFR Part 574, HOPWA and all applicable regulations.

3.4. Schedule of Payments: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each
requested disbursement along with a.payment request form as designated by the State, which
shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall provide additional
financial information if requested by the Stale to verify expenses. Invoices shall be submitted
promptly to the address listed above in section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.

3.5. Review of the Stale Disallowance of Costs; At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination fReport or Audited
Financial Report, the Slate may review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow any items of expenses that
are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any
such disallowance. If the Stale disallows costs for which payment has not.yel been made, it

• shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this
agreement are subject to recapture.

4. Use of Grant Funds

• 4.1. Conformance to 24 CFR Part 574 Subpart D: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 574 Subpart D.

4.2. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
.  amounts between budget line ilems. related items, amendments of related budget exhibits

within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be
made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

mvap Conlrsctor Initials
HOPWA Manchester. 8fyi9-22 Exhibit B
SS-201 e-8HS-05-H0PWA-01
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Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS

Exhibit B .

6. Contractor Financial Management System

5.1. Fiscal Control; The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfe.deral expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Coritractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall'malntain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall t>€ made
"according to Exhibit B. Section 3.3.. Payment of Project Costs and Section 3.4.. Schedule of
Payments, of this Agreement.

MVAP Contrsctor InUlab
HOPWAManchester, •lyl9-22 ExNWi B
SS-2019-BHS-05-KOPWA-01 Page3ol3 Date I
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

Bureau of Houjln{ SupporU

SFY 2019 Projected Funds carried forward from HOPWA Manchester Federal Grant If NH'HlS-0020

NH-H1&-0020 Grant

Line Item

Current Budget
Amount

Projected Balance
Remaining In SPY 2019

TBRA $357,736 $4,692 .

Supportive Services $164,646 $0

STRMU $139,791 $600

Housing Information $5,600 $0

Project Sponsor
Admin

$46,758 $370

Total Project
Sponsor Av^ard

$714,731 . $5,662

Page 1 of 2

f^VAP
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

Detailed Project Budget & Housing Outputs (each organization)

N«mc of

orxioltol'on:

LZEiL

Mcrrimocic Valley A^sislAnce Prognm

Grnnicc: □; Project Spontof: 8 I Ifopplicoblt: | Faith bfl$ed:D Crtswou: Q

B. eligible Activity IIOPWA Request

Vf. 1 Vr.2 Vr. J Totsli:

s f
1"fl
o J

s

"5 fc
h. t

1. Acquuiiton
Docngtiort;

Budcet

4 ofUnits
2. R«A<b>litAiiea4t«pki{/Ce)ivmiOB
DiX'>p<>on:

Btrdeet

f orUnits
}. Nrv CeratfMOM (CaouiHui^)' A SRO avditnpenly:
Dvicrioiioa:

Budeel

lofUniu
Type of Facility:
Shon-iemi shelter O'. TrwuiiienBl heusinx OlComnunity residence □; SRO dtKlling 0; or other perma/Knt supponlvc hotuinft O'

iT 1
o

4. Openiing Cosu for Heuslnx Facility
E)cKripuon:

Buditet

V of Units
}. Leasing
Descriptioct:

Butlcet

1 ofUniu '

«>

i! Tcnani-Qased Rental Assistance Payments
Ocscrspdon: Long-term rental assistance Tor panicipants, to
maintain safe, permanent housing in location of (heir choice

Budxer (105.256 (105.256 (105,256 S315,768

'ofHeuseholds
17 17 17 20

STRUM

7. Shon-Term Rent, Mortgage & Utility Payments to Prevent
Homeleisneu/Description; Sken«na fiaMcUl *'4 lo tubiiiu
»anicipa«a is t tnereriitt, leprc^tai tvietisns, atiliiy dbeonsaetisa.
y hometniiisii, or briCar W9 vhik icceMiaa teaa^rm bcnra
jipt/m.

Buditet. S52.447 $52,447 (52.446 S157.340-

V of Households

41 41 41 ' 50

C S

li
1. Supportive Scrvicea Cmts
Description; Case managenscnt, courtseling. artd other
tupports essential for psnieipanu to access and raainisin safe
ind permanem housing.

Budttei
(62.713 (62.713 (62,713 (188,139

4 ofHouseholdt
125 125 125 140

m

g
&
i3
E
e

r
V

6

7. Housing Inrormaiion Scrvico
Description; Hounna nIsnniliM anO rvtenh is uau clit>hk
persew !• eflsn ra lectu. aeouin. CnMCe end nubais ufe.
aflbrtliMc eernane* tMurini

Duditel (1864 (1863 (1863 S5.590

■ of Household}
18 16 18 36

10. Pennanem Housing Ptsecmcni Services
Descriprion:

BudRci

1 of Household}
11. ttcseen Idenrifturios to Eirsbtriv Coordtauc, A Orvtlop
lewsiAa Auimac*
JcKiiDtiea: Bud set
12, Other Hooiini
AelMiy (Approved by HUO>
>icriDtio«:

Dudset

V of Until

V

.1:

C S
-s L
E (3
•o
<

1). Grantee's Administrative Cosu
Description;

Dudtret
14. Project Spotuor't Atlministniivc Cosu
Description; Ovenlgtu orHOPtVA sulXooioiAi aueurniM
Dr*crvkcs.di)s ecttco'ioa. laeul peiforcunee reponing billieg
metusins eecosnti and uidiii Oudxet SI 5,560 SI5.560 $15,559 $46,679

Total HOPWA Approved Budget
Grant 0NK-H18-OO19 (713,616
SFY 2019 Projected Fund# carried forward from HOPWA Manchoetor Grant eNH-H16<0020 ♦ (6.662
Grand Total Approved Budget for HOPWA fylanchester 4/1/19 -3/31/2022 (719.176

Page 2 of 2
MVAP
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids
SS.2019-BHHS-0S-HOPWA-01

Contractor Initial

Dale
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
'  Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuafs and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as (oliows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shell be made in accordance wKh applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and f^anner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be msdo end remade at such limes es ere prescribed by
the Department..

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary lo support an eligibility delerrhination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to o fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants (or services shall be permitted to ftll but.
an application form and that each applicant or re-opplicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that K is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behaH of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub^contract or sub-agreement if it is.
determined that payments, graluilies or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Conlraclor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no paymenis shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies (or services or {except as otherwise provided by the
Nfederal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo obligate or require the Department lo purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party

■ funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Fine!
ExpendKure Report hereurSder, the Department shall determine lhat the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment

-  In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Conlraclpr to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Departrpent may elect lo:

7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any.prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Spodsl Pros^slons Contractor Ir^lat
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Cor\lractor is
peimitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Deparlment (or all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by (he Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In eddition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants ar>d agrees to maintain the fotlowlrig records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other date evidencing and renectlng ell costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which suff»ciently end .
properly reflect ail such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without iimitalion, all ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such es

'  purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by (he
Deparlment.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include ell records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for cach suchVecipient). records "
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations.the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient ol services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofihe
agency fiscal year. II is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, ActivKies and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuanlto
the Contracl.for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or v/hich have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confldontlallty of Records: Ail information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant lo stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such inforimation, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection wilh their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to Ihe odminislration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guard ian.

ExhlWl C - Spaclal Provisions , Cortrocior
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shail survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefoltowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financiai Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify (he rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form

-  designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Deparlmeril.
1 T.2. Final Report: A fine! report shall be submitted wKhIn thirty (30) days after the end of the term

of this Contract. The Final Report shell be in e form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the cbligat'ons of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of thie Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of (he Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon, review of the
Final Expenditure Report (he Department shall disetlow any expenses claimed by the .Contractor as
costs hereunder the Oepartment shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the sen/ices of the Contract shall include thefoltowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Heafth and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or -
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services. .

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval froni DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines. -
Asters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regtilatlons: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at sucti facility. If any governmental license or
permit shad be required for the operation of (he said facility or (he performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permil. and wiil at all times comply with the terms ertd
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during (he term of this Contract the facilKles shall '
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the lo^l fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with Ixal building and zoriing codes, by
laws and regulations. . . .

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Ctvil.Righls.-Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If (he recipient receives S25,000 or more and has SO or

EJiNbll C - Special Provljlons Conuactof in!
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more employees, il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Ccrtirication Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For.recipients receiving.iess than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of ihe amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certificalion Form to the OCR certifying il is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organiialions. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.oip.u5doj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Sireets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contrdctors must lake reasonable steps to ensure thai LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor.Employec Whlstloblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed Ihe Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In48.
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee WHisTLeetowER Rights and Requirementto inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worthing on this contraci will be subject to the whislleblower rights
and remedies in the pilol program on Coniractoremployce whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whislleblower rights arwl protections under 41 U.S.C, 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that Ihe Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibilily and accourilabilily for the funclion(s). Prior to

■  subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
Ihe subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractpr and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subconlractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subconlractor. the Contractor shall do the follovring:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective sulxonlractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function .

19.2. Have a written agreement wilh the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perfprmance on an ongoing basis .

EjthlW! C - Special Provtsiona Controdor ihttlo
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
■  ■ . responsibilities, end-when the subcontractor's perfomnance will be reviewed • ■

19.5. OHMS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take .corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable end reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Heallh and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable,- shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Departmer^l end containing a description of the Senrices and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth (he total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals thereunder, shall
-mean that period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department and sp^ifled
in Exhibit 0 of the Contract. . --as.*..-

20.5. FEOERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders; and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they-may be amended or revised from time to lime.

20.6. SUPPl-ANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Spodsi Provisions CorXrsctor inlUals
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revtelona to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. S^ATfinn 4 Cortditlonal Nature of Agreement. Is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. . .

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the.contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement ere contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of furxls.
Including any subsoquon! changes to the appropriation or evailability of funds affectod by
any state or federal legislative or executive action thai reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the epprDpriatlon or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in port. In no ovont shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a roductioh.-termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, rf ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify sorvices under.this Agreement
immediately upon givirtg the Contractor notico of such roduction, termination or
modification. The State shall hoi be required to transfer funds from any other ̂ rce or
account into the Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Prorislons. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable..

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stale'is exorc>sir>g its
option to tenminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of ;notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited lo. Identifying the present and future heeds of clients

■ receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3'The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
inforrnation to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any InfomnatiDn or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication ar>d revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stalo
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are lransitior>ed to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transllion Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying dienis and other affected ir^dtviduals
about the transition. The Contractor shall indude the-proposed communications In its
Transition Ran submitted lo the Slate as described ebdve.

1.3. Subparagraph 3. Section 3.1 of the General Provisions of this Contract, Effective
Date/Completion of Services is amended to read as.foilows;

3.1. Notwithslarwllng any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, end subject to the
approval of the Governor and Executive Coundl of the State of New Hampshiro os
indicated in block 1.18. this AgreemenL and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become efiectlve on ApriM, 2019 ('Effectivo Date*).

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves (he right to extend this agreement for up to three (3) additional years,
contingent upon satisfadory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of (ho
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

£jM&n C>V-RovlsJons/ExceptlonsioStandAPdContract Liin0us0e Contractiylr
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V. SubtKle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et scq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.'
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part It of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21591). and require ccrtificalion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grentees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(0) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make on© certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of feel upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of paymerils. suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmcnt. Contractors'using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
•1.1. Publishing e statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled subslar^ce is prohibited in the grantee s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. ■ The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employe© assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
13. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); ^
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a'^ondition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1 Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a.criminal drug

statute.occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1 5 Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 14.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including, position title, to every grant
officer on vtrhose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exh!t)il 0 - Certfflcallon rcgarcfing Omg Free Vendor
WofXptece Reqiiremenls •
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the reguiremenls of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satbfaclorily in a drug abuse assistance or
.rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stale, or local heatth,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to,continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6. -

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of wortc done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, crty. county, slate, zip code) (list each loc^ion) ^

Check □ K there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name; VAi^mVnQcX
"^-VD^nxiro

Date Name; UxuLv-e/\

CUDHH3/ll0ri)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 ofPublic Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and- -
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CertiHcalbn;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D ....
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been'paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for innuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modificatiori of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or ettempting to influence on officer or employee of any ogency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 8r>d not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name; KAevrl rna cX S'Va'OC-e

Dale ' Name: Louveri ^^00
Title: f xecjoMvC

CU4)HHS/n07l)
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the'Presldenl. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmenl.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees (o have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Cerlirication:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION ^
1. By signing end submitting this proposal (conlrecl). the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of wf»y it cannot provide Ihe certificelion. The certification or explanation will be"
considered in connection with Ihe NH Departmenlpf Health and Human Services' {OHMS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participanl to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
.when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If il is-later determined that the prospective •
primary participant knowir>gly rendered an erroneous certificafcn, in addition'to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this-proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospeclive primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous vyhen submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,' 'suspended,' "ineligible,' 'lower tier covered, -
transaction.* 'participant.' 'person.* 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.* 'proposal.* 'and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used In this clause, have the meanings set oul In the Definitions and •
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

8. The prospective primary participanl agrees by subrnitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered Iransaclion be entered into, il shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partic^anl further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled 'Certlficalion Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* provided by DHHS. without modifrcation, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaclion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligibte, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaclion. unless il knows that the certification Is erroneous! A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which II determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing conlairied in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmeni of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - CenlficaOon Regsrdlng Oebermenl. Suspenjion Vendor Inlilalj j
And Other Re&porttlbUlty Miners i
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that vrhich is normaily possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business deaiings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into-e lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this'transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared inelioibio, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal departmenl or agency; .
. 11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (conlrect) been conyicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, ahempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Stale or local)
transaction or a contraci under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale,antitnjst
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery", bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmenlal entity
(Federal, Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminaled for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanal'ion to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower lier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:-
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

volunlarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal departmenl or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower lier participani is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participani shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower lier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regardir>g Debarment,,Suspension, Ineligibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' svithout modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicllations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: Mevrirr^ack. Ass

Date Narne: lxLur«r\

CuOKKS'iioro
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CERTIFICATION OP COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEOERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. equal treatment of FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

whistleblqwer protections

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;-

Vendor will comply, and will r^uire any subgranlees or suljcontractors to comply. wKh any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Secllon 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benerrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Actrequires certain recipients to produce an Equal Emptoymenl Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil righls obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Rwipiehts of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremenls;

- the Civil Righls Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity),
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in eny program or activity;
-theAmericanswithDisabilitiesActof 1990(42 U.S.C,Sections 12131-34). whichprohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted educalion programs. •

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6tp6-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. II does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pl- 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminallon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Execulive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38(U'.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Failh-Based-
Orqanizations)- and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Aulhorizalion
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enaded January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Conlrad Employee Whistleblower Proledions. which protects employees agamsl
reprisal for certain whistle blowing adivities in connection wrth federal grants and conlrads.

The certificate sel out below is a material represonlalion of fad upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni.

BiNWlG
Vendor Inllis
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In Ihe event a Federal or Slaie court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race,_color. rejigion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Offrce for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute Ihe following
cortificalion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlracl) ihe Vendor agrees To comply with the provisions
Indicated above. . —

Vendor Name: AcsSis4ar<eTVt)grr«r

O.ete LCLUren
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does rtot apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
iviedicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's .
representative as Wenlified in Section 1.11 aiid 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificalion; •

1. By signing end submitting' this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

U fM ChJ^klhr'
date ' . Name: Lo^reo Cd\\.n«-UJi\icn

Title: ' '

CUOHKS/itoria
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of .the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance.Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CPR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive..
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement'and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.'

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.

Code of Federal Regulations.-

d. ■ 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AooreQation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'dala.aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 1S4.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
■Act, TItleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 S 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h- 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto,

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as Ihe term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as (he term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the infofmaiion created or received by
Business Associate from or on tehalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhUtI Vendor
HeellTi Insurance PortabilUy Ad
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I. ̂  'Required bv Law" shall have the same meanlng.as the term "required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shali mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected •
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amerxlments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization thaVis accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. - Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner thai would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
t. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; .
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. ' For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third'party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach (Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 ExNbIt I VendOf Intiials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. -

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Actlvttles of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business-Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
•limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificalion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures; books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule,

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to'adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate

. agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

^2014 ExhlWil Vendw InWal/^toLliX-
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pursuanl to this Agreemenl, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected healih information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements', policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine .
"Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the •
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (lO)'business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record at>oul an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfil) its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

■ business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the •
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity..of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created of received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies of back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has beefi otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so'long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or a|l PHI. the.Business Associate shall certify.to.. .
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR. Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or.
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
1S4;50S or 45 CFR Sectiori 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunily.for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure.is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect er as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate aoree to take such action as.is , .

necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect'to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the_Priyacy and Security Rule.
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6. SeofeQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms ar^ conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extef«ions of the protectioris of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
star^ard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oeparlmonl of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature otAuthdrizM Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

OlrK
Title of Authonzed Representative

3)m|H
Date ' '

MemrnocV-^Jlexj
_ Name of the Vendor ^

Signature of Authorized Representative

(lollin-s—UJ'
Name of Authorized Representative

^;^ecu.-VT/f . .
Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REQARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE . . . . .

The Fedar^ Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than .$25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the .
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiftcations result in a total award equal lo or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA repcding requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name o! entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. I.ocation of the entity
8. Principle place of performance '
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS//)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those ' -
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting lo the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month,- plus 30 days, in vrhich
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109-282 and Public Low 1,10-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlifled in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: . .. .
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with ell applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: i^AevTrirrociC

Date Name: Uuxrtoi

ExhM J - Certirication Regsrding the Federel Funding Vendor Initialj
AccounlabDily And Tfanjparency Ad (FFATA) CompDonce^ • i
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FORM A

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of ihe General Provisions. I certify that the responses lo the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Thn ni IMS number (or vour enlitv is: / 7 / <3 ̂  ^ -3^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
" receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subconlracts.
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperalivo agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subconlracts. loans, grants, subgrents. and/or
cooperative agreements?

v/ NO YES

If the answer lo »2 above Is NO. slop here

If the answer to above is YES, please answer the (ollowing:

3. Does the public have access lo information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o{d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, slop here

If the answer lo #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are 85-foilows:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:,

Amount:.

Amourtt:

Amount:

Amount:

cuAMKanioTO
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to .
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

•2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security '
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 000-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide; National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3: 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and alj information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on l^ehalf of the Department of Health.and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in _the_ course of perforrntng contracted-
services - of which coliection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Iriformatibn includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCt), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

Security Requlfementj . «
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open V^reless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and '
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') mear^s information which can be us^ to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numtier. personal

-  information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's rhaiden-
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information* (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for. the Protection, of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and .amendments,
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health information thal is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disctose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must hot disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
-subpoena, etc., without first notifying OHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object-to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and dt>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor, must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. ^

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Compute.r Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing' portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a-virtual private networl^ (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a" virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. ' ' . .

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and suij-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be.coded for 24-houf auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor, will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities,.and includes backup

. data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidentiar Data stored in'a Cloud must be in a
FedF^MP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and antl-malware..utilitie5, The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and nrewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will

•  obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program -
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media '
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce, The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to'
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirerhents will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies'of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days .of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also Known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security contrqis to protect Department
'  " confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery

of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the .information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor v/ill provide regular security awareness and education for its End
'  Users iri support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor.will maintain a
program of an internal process or' processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to-security requirements that.at a minirnum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. ,

i: The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and cornply with all applicable ,
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

i

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a.Business Associate.pursuant lo.45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HlPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor- for any changes In risks, threats, and vulneratDilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowihgry. any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written, cor)senl_J.s ,.oblamed ..frprn, the.Hnfgm^ Security Office
leadership member within the Department.. ,

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make-efforts, to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limits to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with al! applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that Is hot less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, iricluding.
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § .552a), OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Securl^ Rules (45
C.P.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Conftdential. Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the .State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.90v/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement inforrhalion relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach imrnedlately. at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach'which affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need' such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as reference iri Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information al al) times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PPI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conndenllal Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit (he Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and In alt cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used arid
'  disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined -by a risk-based

assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user aedentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access.the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End .Users. DHHS
resenres the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify (he State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,'
Contractor's procedures niust also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents; •

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents -
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

vs. Lul update 1(V09/I8 ExhlUi K Cont/actarlnlltaii j
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as

applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359*C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Lostupdsle 1CV0Q/IA ExMbliK
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